
 

 

 

 

INCOME GENERATION SUB-

COMMITTEE 

 

AGENDA 

 

 Date: Wednesday, 10th November, 
2021 

 Time: 7.00 pm 

 Venue: 

 

Guildhall 

 
 



2 

INCOME GENERATION SUB-COMMITTEE  
 

Information for Members of the Public 
 
Access to the Guildhall is via the front entrance in the High Street.  The nearest car park is 

Copenhagen Street (pay and display). If you are a wheelchair user or have restricted mobility, access 

to the Guildhall can be gained either through the door on the right side of the forecourt as you face the 

Guildhall, or through the sliding doors at the rear of the Guildhall. There is dedicated disabled parking 

space at the rear (access via Copenhagen Street). Most meetings are held on the ground floor, which 

can be reached by using a lift.  If you are a wheelchair user or have restricted mobility and you wish to 

attend a meeting, please telephone or email the officer mentioned below in advance and we will make 

any necessary arrangements to assist your visit. 

 

Part I of the Agenda includes items for discussion in public.  You have the right to inspect copies of 

Minutes and reports on this part of the Agenda as well as background documents used in the 

preparation of these reports. Details of the background papers appear at the foot of each report. Part II 

of the Agenda (if applicable) deals with items of 'Exempt Information' for which it is anticipated that 

the public may be excluded from the meeting and neither reports nor background papers are open to 

public inspection. 

 

Please note that this is a public meeting and members of the public and press are permitted to report 

on the proceedings. "Reporting" includes filming, photographing, making an audio recording and 

providing commentary on proceedings. Any communicative method can be used to report on the 

proceedings, including the internet, to publish, post or share the proceedings. Accordingly, the 

attendance of members of the public at this meeting may be recorded and broadcast. By choosing to 

attend this public meeting you are deemed to have given your consent to being filmed or recorded and 

for any footage to be broadcast or published.   

 

Please note the Council records and live streams many of its meetings. These recordings are published 

on the relevant meeting pages of the Council’s website. A notice to this effect will be posted in the 

meeting room. If a member of the public chooses to speak at a meeting of the City Council he/she will 

be deemed to have given their consent to being recorded and audio being published live to the 

Council’s website. The Chair of the meeting, can at their discretion, terminate or suspend recording, if 

in their opinion, continuing to do so would prejudice the proceedings of the meeting or if they consider 

that continued recording might infringe the rights of any individual, or breach any statutory provision. 

 

At the start of the meeting under the item 'Public Participation' up to fifteen minutes in total is allowed 

for members of the public to present a petition, ask a question or comment on any matter on the 

Agenda.  Participants need to indicate that they wish to speak by 4.30 p.m. on the last working day 

before the meeting by writing, telephoning or E-Mailing the officer mentioned below. 

 

If you have any general enquires or queries about this Agenda or require any details of background 

papers, further documents or information, or to discuss arrangements for the taking of photographs, 

film, video or sound recording please contact the Lead Officer, Julian Pugh, Democratic Services 

Administrator, Guildhall, Worcester WR1 2EY.  Telephone: 01905 722027 (direct line); E-Mail Address:  

committeeadministration@worcester.gov.uk. 

 

This agenda can be made available in large print, braille, on PC disk, tape or in a number of ethnic 

minority languages.  Please contact the above named officer for further information. 

 

Agendas and minutes relating to all City Council Committees and Council Meetings are also available 

electronically, click on the option “Committee Minutes and Documents”, Website Address: 

worcester.gov.uk 

 

 



3 

Income Generation Sub-Committee 
Wednesday, 10 November 2021 

 

Members of the Committee:- 

 

Chair: Councillor Steve Mackay (C) 
Vice-Chair: Councillor Jabbar Riaz (L) 

 
Councillor Chris Mitchell (C) 

Councillor Andy Stafford (C) 
 

Councillor Louis Stephen (G) 

 

 

  

C= Conservative G = Green L = Labour LCo = Labour and Co-operative  
LD = Liberal Democrat 

 

AGENDA 
 

Part 1 
(ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION AND DECISION IN PUBLIC) 

 

1. Appointment of Substitutes  

 To receive details of any Members appointed to attend the meeting instead of a 
Member of the Sub-Committee. 

 

2. Declarations of Interest  

 To receive any declarations of interest. 

 

3. Public Participation  

 Up to a total of fifteen minutes can be allowed, each speaker being allocated a 

maximum of five minutes, for members of the public to present a petition, ask a 
question or comment on any matter on the Agenda or within the remit of the Sub-
Committee. 

 

4. Minutes  

Page(s): 1 - 4 

 Of the meeting held on 28th July 2021 to be approved and signed. 
 

5. Freedom Leisure - Proposed Fees & Charges For 2022  

Page(s): 5 - 24 

Ward(s): All Wards 

Contact Officer:  Alan New, Contracts and Performance Manager 

Tel: 01905 721122 



4 

 1. That following review at the Communities Committee meeting on the 3rd 
November 2021, the Sub-Committee recommends to the Council the approval 

of the proposed Fees & Charges submitted by Freedom Leisure for 2022, 
covering the period 1st January 2022 to 31st December 2022 inclusive 

(Appendix 1); and 
 
2. That this report will go to the Council meeting on the 30th November 2021 for 

final approval. 
 

6. Football Facilities at Perdiswell  

Page(s): 25 - 26 

Ward(s): Claines; St. Stephen 

Contact Officer:  Shane Flynn, Corporate Director, Finance and Resources 

Tel: 01905 722536 

 That the Sub-Committee approve funding of up to £10,000 from the Income 

Generation Fund to undertake revision of financial assessments. 
 

7. Quarter 2 Performance Report For 2021/22  

Page(s): 27 - 36 

Ward(s): All Wards 

Contact Officer:  Joanna Payne, Corporate Policy and Strategy Officer 

Tel: 01905 722407 

 That the Income Generation Sub-Committee notes the Council’s Quarter 2 
performance for 2021/22. 

 

8. Any Other Business  

 Which in the opinion of the Chair is of sufficient urgency as to warrant 

consideration. 
 

9. Item Involving the Disclosure of Exempt information  

 The Sub-Committee are invited to pass the following resolution:- 
 
That under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the press and 

public be excluded from the meeting for the following item of business on the 
grounds that it involves the likely disclosure of information as defined in Schedule 

12A of the said Act. 
 

PART II 

(ITEM FOR DISCUSSION AND DECISION IN PRIVATE) 
 

10. Minutes (Exempt Items)  

Page(s): 37 - 38 

 Of the meeting held on 28th July 2021 to be approved and signed. 

 



INCOME GENERATION SUB-COMMITTEE 

 
28th July 2021 

 
Present:  
 

Councillor Steve Mackay in the Chair 

 Councillors Mitchell, Riaz (Vice-Chair), 
Stafford and Stephen 

 
Officers: Mark Baldwin, Head of Finance 

Shane Flynn, Corporate Director – Finance 

and Resources 
 

 
8 Appointment of Substitutes  

 

None. 
 

9 Declarations of Interest  
 
None. 

 
10 Public Participation  

 
None. 
 

11 Minutes  
 

RESOLVED: That the minutes of the meeting held on 9th June 2021 be 
approved as a correct record and signed by the Chair. 
 

12 Commercial Strategy  
 

The Sub-Committee considered a report on a revised Commercial Strategy. The 
Corporate Director – Finance and Resources presented the report and explained 
that this revision reflected the decision by HM Treasury to prohibit local authorities 

from accessing PWLB loans for proposed acquisitions of assets for commercial 
purposes. The revised Strategy now focussed on schemes which meet the 

Treasury’s approved criteria. 
 

The Strategy also recognised the Council’s success in attracting external funding, 
including match funding from partners, and now set out an approach to resourcing 
the new programme of activities that will arise from this as well as participating in 

future bidding rounds. 
 

Finally, the Strategy included the option to consider creating a Housing 
Development Company to progress opportunities for mixed-tenure housing 
development, which would provide much-needed housing and also generate 

income sufficient to finance the projects. The Corporate Director advised that the 
Corporate Director - Operations, Homes and Communities had arranged for the 

Vice-Chair of the Committee to meet with him and the Chair of Communities to 
agree a specification for this work. 
 

The Corporate Director responded to questions and comments from Sub-
Committee Members. 

Page 1 Agenda Item 4



 28th July 2021 2 

 
 

 

In the ensuing discussion, reference was made to the process for bringing forward 
both commercial and income generation proposals, and the amount of Officer time 

required to work them up. It was acknowledged that the Sub-Committee has 
already achieved some success in this respect, but it is timely to review the way 
forward for the Sub-Committee in terms of the type of projects that can be 

identified, especially if they align with the role of other Committees. Reference 
was also made to the Sub-Committee’s role in monitoring cost saving initiatives. 

Members expressed the view that the focus of this Sub-Committee should be on 
“big ticket” initiatives, rather than day-to-day operational aspects of the Council’s 
business. It was concluded that the Chair and Vice-Chair should progress this 

discussion with Officers.  
 

Members expressed support for the revised Strategy, which reflected priorities 
previously identified by the Sub-Committee and supported a more commercial 
outlook in respect of all service delivery, not just for services that are specifically 

designed to generate income. 
 

RESOLVED: That the Sub-Committee agree to adopt the revised 
Commercial Strategy. 
 

13 Income Generation Strategy  
 

The Sub-Committee considered a revised Income Generation Strategy for 2021 – 
2024. The Corporate Director – Finance and Resources presented the report and 

highlighted the changes in strategy, the drivers for this and the strategic 
principles going forward. Officers responded to questions and comments from 
Sub-Committee Members. 

 
Sub-Committee Members expressed support for the proposed revisions. 

 
RESOLVED: That the Sub-Committee adopt the revised Income Generation 
Strategy as the framework for delivering against approved income 

generation targets in the Medium Term Financial Plan. 
 

14 Quarter 1 Performance Report For 2021/22  
 
The Sub-Committee considered a report on the Council’s Quarter 1 performance 

for Income Generation for 2021/22. The Scorecard had been refreshed with 
projects completed in the last financial year replaced by new projects as 

previously agreed by this Committee. The Corporate Director – Finance and 
Resources and the Head of Finance presented the report and highlighted the main 
points.  

 
Sub-Committee Members commented and asked questions on various aspects of 

the report.  
 
With reference to the worn-out five-a-side pitches adjacent to Perdiswell Leisure 

Centre, the Corporate Director explained that an agreement had been reached 
with Freedom Leisure to repair them so that they can generate income. The 

principle that the Council could take back the site for development at any stage 
had been retained and a sliding compensation package had been established in 
the event that the Council should wish to take up this option.  

Page 2



 28th July 2021 3 

 
 

The potential for a Futsal Centre there will be considered by Policy and Resources 

Committee later in the year. A discussion on any wider uses can be addressed as 
part of that report. The Corporate Director agreed to schedule an informal 

meeting to discuss the Futsal proposals during the autumn. 
 
RESOLVED: That the Sub-Committee note the Council’s quarter 1 

performance for 2021/22. 
 

15 Any Other Business  
 
None. 

 
16 Item Involving the Disclosure of Exempt Information  

 
RESOLVED: That under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 
1972, the press and public be excluded from the meeting for the 

following item of business on the grounds that it involves the likely 
disclosure of information as defined in Schedule 12A of the said Act. 

 
17 Development Fund Proposal  

 

The Sub-Committee considered a proposal to make an offer for a property and 
concluded that it should not be taken forward. 

 
 

 
Duration of the meeting: 7.00p.m. – 8.22p.m. 
 

 
 

 
Chair at the meeting on 

10th November 2021 

Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 4



 
 
Report to: Income Generation Sub-Committee, 10th November 2021 
 

Report of: Corporate Director – Operations, Homes and Communities 
 

 

Subject:  FREEDOM LEISURE - PROPOSED FEES & CHARGES FOR 2022  
 
1. Recommendation 

 
1.1 That following review at the Communities Committee meeting on the 3rd 

November 2021, the Committee recommends to the Council the approval of 
the proposed Fees & Charges submitted by Freedom Leisure for 2022, 
covering the period 1st January 2022 to 31st December 2022 inclusive 

(Appendix 1); and 
 

1.2 This report will go to the Council meeting on the 30th November 2021 for 
final approval. 

 

2. Background 
 

2.1 Freedom Leisure was appointed as the City Council’s approved leisure operator to 
manage the public leisure facilities and associated services with effect from 1st 
December 2015 through a ten year contract with the option for a further three year 

extension.  

2.2 Contractually Freedom Leisure is required to submit their proposed fees and charges 

for the following year by 31st August each year. 

2.3 Fees and charges are approved annually as part of the budget setting process and 

are approved by Full Council. The majority of the Council’s fees and charges are 
agreed at the February Council meeting and implemented with effect from 1st April to 
the 31st March.  

2.4 Freedom Leisure has previously submitted a formal request to submit their fees and 
charges for approval with effect from 1st January each year, instead of the 1st April. 

The rationale for this is that demand for indoor leisure provision is at its highest in 
the first quarter of the calendar year, as outdoor options are more limited due to the 
lack of natural daylight and adverse weather conditions.  

2.5 On the 9th May 2017 CLT asked officers to amend the forward plan to reflect the 
revised implementation date, referred to above, for the annual approval of the 

Freedom Leisure Fees & Charges.   

2.6 Freedom Leisure also delivers the sports, arts and play development service on 
behalf of the City Council; this is known as the Active Communities programme.  

 

 

Page 5 Agenda Item 5



This programme is designed to break even with no operator profit and the 
Community Holiday Activity Programme is provided free of charge in priority wards, 

with associated costs funded via external grants.  

2.7 Freedom Leisure delivers a part of the Worcester City Council employee benefit 
scheme.  This consists of a free gym induction, free booking card and a 25% 

discount on ‘pay as you go’ activities and membership prices, upon production of a 
valid staff ID badge. This supports Freedom’s commitment to a healthy workforce 

under the accredited ‘Worcestershire Works Well’ scheme.  

2.8 It should be noted that the prices contained within the Freedom Leisure Fees and 
Charges proposal for 2022 are the maximum charges applicable.  However, with due 

notification to the City Council a reduced price can be promoted as part of a targeted 
marketing campaign (which would usually be run on a national basis). 

2.9 The choices available under the ‘Connected’ membership categories provide 
customers with not only access to the excellent facilities available at Perdiswell 

Leisure Centre, St Johns Sports Centre and Nunnery Wood Sports Complex, but it 
also enables them to use (at no additional cost) any Freedom Leisure facilities in the 
Worcestershire area, such as those within the local Malvern contract at Sport 

Martley, Dyson Perrins and Malvern Splash.  

2.10 Within the original contract bid Freedom Leisure committed to providing free 

swimming for the over 75s and under 16s in one of the priority wards each holiday 
period, on a rotational basis (Warndon, Rainbow Hill/Tolladine, Gorse Hill/KGV also 
known as ‘Areas of Highest need’ as well as Ronkswood, Midland Road/Horizon and 

Dines Green) and free swimming lessons for identified year 6 pupils who are not able 
to reach the National curriculum criteria of being able to swim at least 25m.  

2.11 In October 2019 Freedom Leisure were appointed as the operator for the new tennis 
facilities in Gheluvelt & Cripplegate Parks, which opened to the public in September 
2020. Therefore, this activity is also now included within their annual review of fees 

and charges. There is an allocation of 15 hours per week for free tennis courts 
subject to individuals meeting the advance 25/50 criteria. In addition, the Council 

has the option of funding an additional 15 hours of free tennis between 1st April and 
30th September 2022, as was the case over the same period in 2021. 

2.12 In September 2021 Freedom Leisure consulted with representatives from the Public 

Health Service at Worcestershire County Council and the Sports Partnership 
Herefordshire and Worcestershire to discuss the content of their future ‘Active 

Ageing’ programme and their proposed fees and charges for 2022. Both 
organisations were content with the proposal outlined to them and pleased with the 
impact of Freedom Leisure’s ongoing work in the community. 

3. Pricing and Rationale for 2022 
 

3.1 The proposal from Freedom Leisure is that their prices are increased by an average 
of 3.2% across the various categories of their Fees & Charges proposal document, 
with the following providing a summary across the categories: 

 
 

 
 
 

Page 6



Category Ave: % increase 

Monthly Memberships 1.35% 

Annual Memberships 1.35% 

Swim School Memberships 3.0% 

Swimming Activities 4.6% 

School Swimming  5.8% 

Clubs & Private Hire (Events) 3.5% 

Special Swimming Sessions 5.6% 

Unsupervised Activities 4.9% 

Equipment Hire 0.8% 

Supervised Activities 4.5% 

*AGP’s and Athletics Facilities 6.2% 

Tennis – Annual Passes No increase from 2021 

Tennis – Pay & Play No increase from 2021 

 *AGP’s – Artificial Grass Pitches (at all three Leisure Centres) 

3.2 Freedom Leisure have increased their casual charges due to the expectation that 
many of their employee costs will increase significantly. Wages across the group will 

need to increase due to the anticipated increases expected with the National Living 
Wage/National Minimum Wage.  

  
3.3 The employment market in the leisure industry remains very challenging in part due 

to the existing level of pay. Freedom Leisure are finding it very difficult to recruit for 
key positions and they recognise that they need to increase the salaries offered for 
key posts such as Duty Managers, Swim Manager and Swim Instructors to ensure 

they remain competitive. With such a high demand for swimming lessons they need to 
ensure they can cater for all children and adults wanting to learn to swim and 

increasing pay will ensure they can continue to deliver what is a hugely successful 
programme. 

 

3.4 The casual adult swim is due to increase by 6.5% (30p) and the casual Under 4 swim 
by 8% (10p) and the junior fee by 8.7% (20p). Following a recent local benchmarking 

exercise these casual swim charges identified the fact that the proposed new charges 
at Perdiswell Leisure Centre are comparable with other competitors, even though it’s 
the newest facility. Therefore, the new prices will align competitively with all the local 

facilities that were included in the study (Bromsgrove Leisure Centre, Redditch Leisure 
Centre, Malvern Splash, Pershore Leisure Centre, Evesham Leisure Centre, Droitwich 

Leisure Centre and Worcester Citizens Pool). 

Leisure Centre Adult      
2021 

Junior    
2021 

Proposed 
2022 

Proposed 
2022 

Perdiswell £4.60 £2.30 £4.90 £2.50 

Bromsgrove £4.50 £3.50  

 

Not yet confirmed 
for   2022 

Redditch £4.60 £2.30 

Malvern Splash £4.55 £3.40 

Pershore/Evesham/Droitwich £4.60 £3.30 

Worcester Citizens Pool £5.20 £3.30 

Page 7



 

3.5 Freedom Leisure calculates the rig/de rig charges for clubs and private hire based on 

the number of individual swimming lessons cancelled and refunded. Children enrolled 
on the swim school programme pay by monthly direct debit and therefore when 
Freedom Leisure hosts an event (swimming gala etc.) they have to provide refunds 

to a far greater number of children (2,250 local children now participate in the swim 
school programme across the seven day period) exceeding the attendance prior to 

the coronavirus pandemic. A 25% discount is then applied to the overall charge for 
the event.  

3.6 The proposed increased rates for the Swimming Club have been agreed with the 

Secretary of the Club following a consultation meeting that took place on the 17th 
September 2021 between the two organisations.  

3.7 Worcester Swimming Club use the whole of the main pool during their training 
sessions, but the teaching Pool remains available for community use. For events 

such as the County Championship and Club Open meets which can encompass a 
Friday evening and all day Saturday and Sunday, Freedom will limit the number of 
occasions this will occur within the programme to protect public swim access. On the 

occasions when a gala is being held at Perdiswell Leisure Centre mitigation against 
the loss of public swimming time is that ‘Connected’ members still have the option of 

being able to swim at Malvern Splash without additional charge. 

3.8 Freedom Leisure also offers a promotional membership to students attending the 
Heart of Worcestershire College at a cost of £105 per annum. However, the students 

only have to pay 50% of the fee with the College subsidising the balance. This is to 
encourage active participation amongst the students and provides them with better 

value for money than paying per visit.  
 
3.9 It is proposed to increase the Fitness class fee by 6.7% (40p) per session following 

the return of the Les Mills licensed programme of classes such as Body Pump, Body 
Balance, Body Combat, Sh’Bam and Grit across the sites. 

 

3.10 For Tennis at Cripplegate and Gheluvelt Parks Freedom Leisure proposes to apply a 
freeze at current 2021 charges, they will continue to offer the advanced 25 

concession for the annual pass, and freedom leisure members will continue to benefit 
from a 20% discount.  

 

4. Preferred Option  
 

4.1 That the proposed fees and charges for 2022 are approved. 

5. Alternative Options Considered 
 

5.1 There is an option to increase all prices by a uniform 2.5%, this is not recommended 
given the comments in 3.1 and 3.2 of this report with vacancies at a long term high, 

coupled with high wage pressure across many sectors.  The National Living Wage is 
expected to increase by 2.7% in 2022 and 3.8% in 2023 with experts forecasting 
average salary increases of 3% in 2022. Freedom anticipate that the combination of 

increasing vacancies and inflation is likely to keep pressure on pay increases. 
Freedom also expect the recent announcement of an increase of 1.25% in NI costs 

to create additional further pressure on pay, and therefore have a detrimental impact 
on their cost base.  

Page 8



 
5.2 A standard 2.5% increase also doesn’t enable or support Freedom Leisure to respond 

to the competitive market place in a dynamic way, and it is of critical importance 
that the delivery partner for Leisure Services is able to influence price setting with 
appropriate rationale. 

 
5.3 There is an option that no price increases are applied. This option is discounted due 

to the impact of the coronavirus pandemic on the leisure industry as a whole. 
Therefore, in order for Freedom to be able to meet their contractual obligations as 
much as possible in the current economic climate there is a need to apply some 

increases to fees and charges, as well as a reduction in expenditure. It is 
recommended that fees and charges are increased in a planned way, to ensure that 

participation is supported.  

6. Implications 

 
6.1 Financial and Budgetary Implication 

 

Due to the impact of the coronavirus pandemic Freedom Leisure are still in their 
Business Recovery phase and continue to receive support from the Council. In 

2020/21 they received a payment of £100k from the Government NLRF (National 
Leisure Recovery Fund) and a further £220k from the Council. The new fees and 
charges recommended enable Freedom Leisure to continue to provide efficient 

services and will assist them in a return to meeting their contractual obligations in 
terms of the future management fee due to the Council.  

 
6.2 Legal and Governance Implications 

 

Responsibility for reviewing fees and charges is delegated in part 3 of the Council’s 
constitution to the Income Generation Sub-Committee. An annual review is carried 

out as part of the budget-setting process for the forthcoming financial year. 
However, as the proposed changes affect Freedom Leisure’s income and expenditure 
only, there is no budget impact for the Council, outside of that outlined in 6.1 above. 

 
6.3 Risk Implications 

 
There is always a risk that with any increase in fees and charges that fewer 
members of the community will be able to participate.  It is the view of officers that 

this risk is mitigated since the number of fees and charges which are receiving a 
significant increase are limited to casual pay and play activities.  

 
6.4 Corporate/Policy Implications 

 

Links to the City Plan corporate theme number 3 – A Healthy and Active City. 
 

6.5 Equality Implications 
 
No specific equality impacts were identified in relation to these proposed charges. 

However, as part of the Council’s annual budget setting process an overall equalities 
impact assessment will be undertaken. 

6.6 Human Resources Implications 
 

None arising directly as a consequence of this report. 

Page 9



 
6.7 Health and Safety Implications 

 
None arising directly as a consequence of this report. 

 

6.8 Social, Environmental and Economic Implications 
 

Maintaining a fee & charges schedule that promotes participation with a 
differentiated approach (i.e. targeted programmes and reductions through the 
concessions recommended) enables a broad range of the community to participate in 

activity and meet with other people throughout leisure centres and community based 
activity. The geographical spread of the three leisure centres and activities also 

supports the Council to meets its aspirations in relation to sustainability, with fewer 
journeys than would be the case if there were a single centre serving the City. 

 
 
 

Ward(s)   All Wards 
Contact Officer: Alan New – Tel: 01905 721122 or mobile 07973 612320 

 Email: alan.new@worcester.gov.uk 
 
Background Papers: Appendix 1 – Freedom Leisure - Proposed Fees and   

    Charges schedule for 2022 (1st Jan to 31st Dec inclusive)  
 

 

 

 

 

Page 10

mailto:alan.new@worcester.gov.uk


 
 
 

Proposed 
 

Pricing From: 
1st January 2022 to 31st December 2022 

 
 
 

 
 

We confirm that we will continue to offer the current concessionary rates as set out below: 
 

  Leisure Centres 

Eligibility Criteria 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Advance 25 - up to 25 % reduction on fees and charges 
(Memberships and Pay as you go) 
 
Juniors (under 18), Individuals in receipt of State Pension, Full-
Time Students. 
 
Under 25's on the following: Modern Apprenticeships, NVQ 
Training Schemes and Life Skills Training. 
 
Corporate Membership. 
 

Advance 50 - up to 50 % reduction on fees and charges (Pay as 
you go only) 
 
Carer's Allowance, Child Tax Credit, Council Tax Benefit (not 
discount schemes), Employment & Support Allowance, Foster 
Carers and Children, Housing Benefit, Income Support, 
Jobseekers Allowance, Pension Guaranteed Credits, Working Tax 
Credit. 

Page 11 Agenda Item 5
Appendix 1



As part of our commitment to a healthy work force ‘Worcester Works Well’, we will continue to 
offer Employees of Worcester City Council a free induction, free booking card and a 25% discount on 
production of their staff ID access card on pay as you go and membership prices. 
 
Freedom Leisure employee membership will continue at £5 a month and to have the privilege of 
booking classes would be £19.50. This includes the use of all our facilities. 
 
The HOWC students continue to benefit from a discounted annual membership. There have been no 
price increases on the membership for the last 5 years; therefore the annual membership will 
increase to £105 for 2022, which is an increase of £5. The HOWC subsidise half of the membership 
for the students.  
 
Public health Worcestershire County Council and the County Sports Partnership Hereford and 
Worcestershire were both consulted with regards to the programmes and fee’s and charges for the 
2022 period.  

 

NB. 
PLC – Perdiswell Leisure Centre 
SJSC – St Johns Sport Centre 
NWSC – Nunnery Wood Sports Complex 

 
Freedom Leisure Membership Packages  
 
Average % increase across all membership categories is 1.35%. The highest % increase is the 
Worcester city council connected membership with an increase of 2.76%/59p. The lowest increase is 
the joint Worcestershire connected at 0.62%/0.49p.  
 

Package Type 
Facilities/ 

Current 

% 
Increase 

Proposed from 
1/1/22 Activities Available 

Monthly fee 

DD 
Stand 

DD DD 
Stand 

DD 

Concession Concession 

£ £ £ £ 

 Joint Worcestershire 
Connected (7 freedom 

leisure centres in 
Worcestershire) 

2 x adult Fitness Suite, 
Fitness Classes, 

Swimming 
£79.50 £59.62 0.62% £79.99 £59.99 

Joint PLC only  
2 x adult Fitness Suite, 

Fitness Classes, 
Swimming 

£72.40 £54.30 0.81% £72.99 £54.75 

Worcestershire 
connected (7 freedom 

leisure centres)  

Fitness Suite, Fitness 
Classes, Swimming 

£43.50 £32.62 1.14% £43.99 £32.99 

PLC only  
Fitness Suite, Fitness 
Classes, Swimming 

£39.40 £29.60 1.50% £39.99 £29.99 

Corporate 
Worcestershire 

Connected 

Fitness Suite, Fitness 
Classes, Swimming 

£37.00 NA 1.35% £37.50 £28.10 

Page 12



WCC Connected (7 
freedom leisure centres 

in Worcestershire) 

Fitness Suite, Fitness 
Classes, Swimming 

N/A £21.40 2.76% NA £21.99 

Connected Worcester 
Junior (10-18 years old) 

Fitness Suite, Fitness 
Classes, Swimming 

N/A £21.80 0.87% NA £21.99 

Freedom Family Fitness 
(NWSC, SJSC and PLC) 

2 x adult & 2 x under 
18 Fitness Suite, 
Fitness Classes, 

Swimming 

£92.00 £69.00 1.08% £92.99 £69.75 

Joint Freedom Centre 
(NWSC & SJSC) 

2 x adult Fitness Suite, 
Fitness Classes, 

Swimming 
£54.50 £40.50 0.90% £54.99 £41.25 

Freedom Centre (NWSC 
& SJSC) 

Single site Fitness Suite 
and Classes. 

£29.40 £22.05 1.87% £29.95 £22.05 

Freedom Swim Swimming Only £29.40 £22.05 2.01% £29.99 £22.49 

 

Freedom Leisure Annual Memberships 

The below annual membership prices are the cost of 11 single payments of the above monthly direct 
debit membership prices. 
 
Average % increase across all membership categories is 1.35 %. The highest % increase is WCC 
connected membership, by 2.76%/£6.49. Whilst the lowest increase is the joint Worcestershire 
connected by 0.62%/£5.39.   
 

Package Type 

Facilities/ 

Current 

% Increase 

Proposed from 1/1/22 
Activities Available 

Annual membership fee  
DD Stand 

DD 
Annual  

Annual  

Concession Concession 

£ £ £ £ 

 Joint Worcestershire 
Connected (7 freedom 

leisure centres in 
Worcestershire) 

2 x adult Fitness Suite, Fitness 
Classes, Swimming 

£874.50 £655.90 0.62% £879.89 £659.92 

Joint PLC only  
2 x adult Fitness Suite, Fitness 

Classes, Swimming 
£796.40 £597.30 0.81% £802.89 £602.17 

Worcestershire connected 
(7 freedom leisure centres)  

Fitness Suite, Fitness Classes, 
Swimming 

£478.50 £358.90 1.13% £483.89 £362.92 

Perdiswell only  
Fitness Suite, Fitness Classes, 

Swimming 
£433.40 £325.05 1.50% £439.89 £329.92 

Corporate Worcester 
Connected 

Fitness Suite, Fitness Classes, 
Swimming 

407.00 NA 1.35% 412.50 £309.38 

Page 13



WCC Connected (7 
freedom leisure centres in 

Worcestershire) 

Fitness Suite, Fitness Classes, 
Swimming 

NA £235.40 2.76% NA £241.89 

Connected Worcester 
Junior (10-18 years old) 

Fitness Suite, Fitness Classes, 
Swimming 

NA 239.80 0.87% 241.89 £181.42 

Freedom Family Fitness 
(NWSC, SJSC and PLC) 

2 x adult & 2 x under 18 Fitness 
Suite, Fitness Classes, 

Swimming 
£1,012.00 £759.00 1.08% £1,022.89 £767.17 

Joint Freedom Centre 
(NWSC & SJSC) 

2 x adult Fitness Suite, Fitness 
Classes, Swimming 

£599.50 £449.60 0.90% £604.89 £453.67 

Freedom Centre (NWSC or 
SJSC) 

Single site Fitness Suite and 
Classes. 

£323.40 £22.05 1.87% £329.45 £247.09 

Freedom Swim Swimming Only £323.40 £242.55 2.01% £329.89 £247.42 

 
 
Freedom Leisure Swim School Packages 
 
These are Direct Debit prices only and the prices seen allows for 1 session a week for 50 weeks of 
the year.  
 
Average % increase across all membership categories is 3.02%. The highest % increase is the junior 
swim school lessons by 4.29%/£1.05, and the lowest % increase is the junior rookie by 2.08%/63p. 
 
All members of the swim school continue to benefit from free casual swimming.  
 

Package Type Activities Available 

Current 

% Increase 

Proposed from 1/1/22 

DD 
Stand 

DD 
DD 

Stand 

DD 

Concession Concession 

£ £ £ £ 

Junior Swim School 
Lesson 30 mins 

30 min swim lesson £24.45 NA 4.29% £25.50 N/A 

Junior swim school - 
45 minutes (stage 

8,9,10) 

45 min coaching session for 
technique and performance 

£27.60 NA 2.16% £28.20 N/A 

Junior Rookie 60 
Mins 

60 min lifesaving skills £31.83 NA 2.08% £32.49 N/A 

Adult lessons 30 min swim lesson £30.90 NA 3.53% £31.99 N/A 

 
 

Page 14



Swimming Activities 

Average % increase across all swimming activities in this section is 4.6%. The highest % increase is 
junior swim with 8.7%/20p. Over 75’s and children 16 and under from priority wards will receive no 
increase. There continues to be an annual £10 registration fee for the free over 75 free swimming. 
 
We have proposed the following changes for the 2022 fees and charges: 
 
Under 8’s have been changed to under 4 year of age. 
Over 8’s have been changed to Junior 4-15 years of age. 
 
Ages 16-17 will continue to benefit from the advanced 25 rate.   
 

Swimming Activities  

  Current % Increase Proposed from 1/1/22 

Swimming 
Standard Advance 25 Advance 50   Standard Advance 25 Advance 50 

£ £ £   £ £ £ 

Adult  £4.60 £3.45 £2.30 6.5% £4.90 £3.65 £2.45 

Under 4 N/A £1.25 N/A 8.0% N/A £1.35 N/A 

Junior   N/A £2.30 N/A 8.7% N/A £2.50 N/A 

Over 75’s FREE with a £10 annual reg fee 0.0% FREE with a £10 annual reg fee 

Child 16 and Under from 
Priority Wards during specific 

school holiday sessions  
FREE 0.0% Free 

 
 
School Swimming 

Average % increase across all swimming activities is 5.8% in this section. The highest increase is the 
teaching pool hire by 6.3%/£4.5, and the lowest increase is half main pool hire by 5.6%/£2.60. 
 

Schools  

  Current % Increase Proposed from 1/1/22 

Main Pool 
Standard 

Advance 
25 

Advance 
50 

  Standard 
Advance 

25 
Advance 50 

£ £ £   £ £ £ 

Whole pool  N/A £92.80 N/A 5.6% N/A £98.00 N/A 

Half main pool  N/A £46.40 N/A 5.6% N/A £49.00 N/A 

Teaching Pool N/A £71.00 N/A 6.3% N/A £75.50 N/A 

Individual Lanes N/A £17.50 N/A 5.7% N/A £18.50 N/A 

 

Page 15



 
Clubs & private hire 

Average % increase across all swimming facility hire in this sector is 3.5% .The highest % increase is 
studio hire, 5% +£1.20, and the lowest % increase is 3% for galas.    
 

 Rig/De rig charge will be based on the number of individual lessons that are cancelled due to 

the event and will be equal to the refund total. 

 A 25% discount will be applied to the overall charge, providing lessons were cancelled and 

refunded. 

 The lifeguard hourly rate will be based on the national living wage at the time of the event. 

 Electrics (Per hour) - Use of display screen in main pool 

Clubs and private hire  

  Current % Increase Proposed from 1/1/22 

  Standard 
Advance 

25 
Advance 50   Standard 

Advance 
25 

Advance 
50 

  £ £ £ % £ £ £ 

Main Pool (8 Lane) £123.60 NA NA 3.0% £127.30 NA NA 

Main Pool (6 Lane) £92.90 NA NA 3.0% £95.70 NA NA 

Teaching Pool £71.00 NA NA 3.1% £73.20 NA NA 

Galas £169.50 NA NA 3.0% £174.60 NA NA 

Studio £23.80 NA NA 5.0% £25.00 NA NA 

Electrics (Optional) £21.20 NA NA 3.8% £22.00 NA NA 

Lifeguard Hire (Optional) NLW NA NA NA NLW NA NA 

Rig/De-Rig Charge  

Cost of 
cancelling 

swim 
school 

NA NA 

Cost of 
cancelling 

swim 
school 

Cost of 
cancelling 

swim 
school 

NA NA 

 
 
The below prices for Worcester Swimming Club (WSC) have been agreed by Kate Lloyd (secretary) on 
17th Sep 2021.  
 

 The lifeguard hourly rate will be based on the national living wage at the time of the event. 

 Electrics (Per hour) - Use of display screen in main pool 

WSC 

  Current 
% 

Increase 
Proposed from 1/1/22 

  Standard 
Advance 

25 
Advance 

50 
  Standard 

Advance 
25 

Advance 
50 

  £ £ £ % £ £ £ 

Main Pool (8 Lane) NA £92.50 NA 3.2% NA £95.45 NA 

Main Pool (6 Lane) NA £69.40 NA 3.5% NA £71.80 NA 

Teaching Pool NA £34.60 NA 3.0% NA £35.65 NA 

Galas NA £126.50 NA 3.5% NA £130.95 NA 

Page 16



Studio NA £18.10 NA 3.6% NA £18.75 NA 

Electrics (Optional) NA £15.90 NA 2.8% NA £16.35 NA 

Lifeguard Hire (Optional) NA NLW NA NLW NA NLW NA 

Rig/De-Rig Charge  NA £73.50 NA 0.7% NA £74.00 NA 

 

Page 17



Special Sessions 

 
Average % increase across all Special swimming sessions in this section is 5.6%. The highest % 
increase is adult lane swim by 6.5%/30p, and the lowest % increase is water aerobics by 4.9%/30p. 
 

Special Sessions 

  Current % Increase Proposed from 1/1/22 

  Standard 
Advance 

25 
Advance 

50 
  Standard 

Advance 
25 

Advance 50 

  £ £ £   £ £ £ 

Adult Lane Swim £4.60 £3.45 £2.30 6.5% £4.90 £3.65 £2.45 

Water Aerobics £6.10 £4.60 £3.05 4.9% £6.40 £4.80 £3.20 

50+ swim N/A £3.30 N/A 6.1% N/A £3.50 N/A 

One to One Private 
Swimming Lesson  

£19.50 N/A N/A 5.1% £20.50 N/A N/A 

Two to One Private 
Swimming Lesson 

£28.50 N/A N/A 5.3% £30.00 N/A N/A 

 
 
Unsupervised Activities 
 
Average % increase across all activities in this section is 4.9%. The highest % increase is table tennis 
by 6.1%/25p. The lowest increase is the charge for showers by 1.1%/5p.  
 

  Current % Increase Proposed from 1/1/22 

  Standard 
Advance 

25 
Advance 

50 
  Standard 

Advance 
25 

Advance 50 

  £ £ £   £ £ £ 

Badminton £5.95 £4.50 £3.00 5.9% £6.30 £4.70 £3.15 

Whole Main Hall - PLC £97.80 £73.35 £48.90 5.8% £103.50 £77.65 £51.75 

Half Main Hall – Half at PLC 
and [Whole] at SJSC / 

NWSC 
£48.90 £36.70 £24.45 5.8% £51.75 £38.80 £25.60 

Showers only £4.35 £3.25 £2.15 1.1% £4.40 £3.30 £2.20 

Table Tennis £4.10 £3.00 £2.05 6.1% £4.35 £3.25 £2.15 

50+ activities  £2.65 £2.00 £1.30 5.7% £2.80 £2.10 £1.40 

Fitness Suite – PLC £7.40 £5.55 £3.70 5.4% £7.80 £5.85 £3.90 

Fitness Suite –NWSC £5.55 £4.15 £2.80 4.5% £5.80 £4.35 £2.90 

Fitness Suite – SJSC £6.95 £5.20 £3.45 5.0% £7.30 £5.50 £3.65 

Squash (NWSC only – 8-
4pm weekdays  and all day 

weekends) 
£4.50 £3.40 £2.25 5.6% £4.75 £3.55 £2.40 

Squash (NWSC only – 
Premium rate weekdays 

4pm-10pm) 
£5.75 £4.30 £2.85 6.1% £6.10 £4.60 £3.05 

Page 18



Squash League: Joining  Fee £17.00 £12.75 £8.50 3.5% £17.60 £13.20 £8.80 

Squash League: Renewal                     £12.20 £9.10 £6.10 3.3% £12.60 £9.45 £6.30 

 
 
Equipment Hire 
 
Average % increase across all activities in this section is 0.8%. We have continued with £5 for a 
replacement freedom leisure replacement card.   
 
Relevant qualifications will be required to hire the trampolines.  
 

Equipment Hire 

  Current % Increase Proposed from 1/1/22 

  Standard 
Advance 

25 
Advance 

50 
  Standard 

Advance 
25 

Advance 50 

  £ £ £   £ £ £ 

Racket/bat hire £1.00 £1.00 £1.00 0.0% £1.00 £1.00 £1.00 

Ball Hire (with deposit) FREE FREE FREE FREE FREE FREE FREE 

Trampoline Hire (to 
include cost of court) 

£20.70 £15.50 £10.40 2.4% £21.20 £15.90 £10.60 

Replacement Cards £5.00 £5.00 £5.00 0.0% £5.00 £3.75 £2.50 

 
 
Supervised activities 
 
Supervised activities on average increased by 4.5%. The highest % increase fitness classes at 
SJSC/NWSC by 6.7%/40p. The lowest increase is soft play parties at PLC by 1%/99p.  
 
Children’s parties PLC - 

 Exclusive 1 Hour session.  

 30 Minute use of a studio for cake and party bags 
 

Children’s Parties (SJSC is priced per person)- 
 Exclusive 1 hour session. 

 30 Minute use of a studio for cake and party bags 

 
 
Prices on other page. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 19



Supervised Activities 

  Current % Increase Proposed from 1/1/22 

  Standard 
Advance 

25 
Advance 

50 
  Standard 

Advance 
25 

Advance 50 

  £ £ £   £ £ £ 

Pool floats and fun party, 
PLC. 

NA £158.00 NA 1.3% NA £159.99 NA 

Jungle Run Inflatable dry 
side Party - PLC 

NA £158.00 NA 1.3% NA £159.99 NA 

Soft play party, under 5's - 
PLC 

NA £99.00 NA 1.0% NA £99.99 NA 

Multi sports party PLC  NA £99.00 NA 1.0% NA £99.99 NA 

SJSC party, cost per head. NA £5.45 NA 6.4% NA £5.80 NA 

Gymnastics:  Junior NA £5.45 NA 6.4% NA £5.80 NA 

Trampolining (junior)  NA £5.90 NA 5.1% NA £6.20 NA 

All Fitness classes - NWSC £6.00 £4.50 £3.00 6.7% £6.40 £4.80 £3.20 

All Fitness classes – SJSC £6.00 £4.50 £3.00 6.7% £6.40 £4.80 £3.20 

All Fitness classes – PLC  £6.10 £4.60 £3.05 6.6% £6.50 £4.90 £3.25 

Short Mat Bowls £3.00 £2.25 £1.50 6.7% £3.20 £2.35 £1.60 

 
 
 
 
  

Page 20



All weather pitch (AWP) & Athletics track 
 
Average % increase across all activities in this section is 6.2%. The highest % increase was PLC all 
weather pitch, by 7.5%/£3. The lowest increase all weather pitch at SJSC by 5.6%/£3. 
 
Major event and Competitions will remain as negotiated between the operator and the hirer.  
 

All Weather Pitch & Athletic Track 

  Current 
% 

Increase 
Proposed from 1/1/22 

  Standard 
Advance 

25 
Advance 

50 
  Standard 

Advance 
25 

Advance 50 

  £ £ £   £ £ £ 

Whole A/W Pitch NWSC £78.30 £58.70 £39.15 6.0% £83.00 £62.25 £41.50 

Half A/W Pitch NWSC £39.20 £29.40 £19.60 5.9% £41.50 £31.50 £20.75 

Grass centre Pitch NWSC  (incl. 
floodlights) 

£71.00 £53.25 £35.50 5.6% £75.00 £56.25 £37.50 

Soccer Real rubber crumb 5-a-
side All-weather pitches SJSC 

£53.50 £40.10 £26.75 5.6% £56.50 £42.40 £28.25 

PLC All-weather Pitch (3rd 
generation) 

£40.00 £30.00 £20.00 7.5% £43.00 £32.25 £21.50 

Athletics Track: NWSC (Per 
person) 

£4.40 £3.30 £2.20 6.8% £4.70 £3.50 £2.35 

Athletics Track: Schools NA £47.20 NA 5.9% NA £50.00 NA 

Athletic Meets & Club hire £54.50 £40.90 £27.25 6.4% £58.00 £43.50 £29.00 

Major Events/Competitions By Negotiation  By Negotiation  

 
 
Tennis at Ghulevelt and Cripplegate parks  
 
For the second year in a row we have frozen the tennis fee’s and charges for annual pass and pay 
and play. We continue to offer the advanced 25 concession for the annual pass, and freedom leisure 
members will continue to benefit from a 20% discount.  The annual pass is available for the entire 
household, and covers a 12 months consecutive period. 
 

Package Type 

Worcester Tennis 

Current & 2021 

  
Proposed from 

01/01/22 Activities Available   

Annual pass 

Annual 
pass 

Concession  
  Annual 

Pass 
Concession 

  

£ £ % Increase  £ £ 

Freedom tennis annual pass  
up to 4 hours of bookings per 

week, entire household 
£65.00 £48.75 0.0% £65.00 £48.75 

Freedom Leisure member - 
annual pass -  

up to 4 hours of bookings per 
week, entire household 

£52.00 NA 0.0% £52.00 NA 

 

Page 21



 
Pay and play charges will remain the same as 2021.  
 
Floodlights have increased by 4%/20p per hour. Floodlights are only charged during appropriate 
months.  
 

Package Type 
Facilities/ 

Current  

  
Proposed 
01/01/22 

Activities Available 

Pay and Play  
% 

increase 

Adult hourly court fee's 
If one adult plays, adult court 

charges apply. 
£7.00 0.0% £7.00 

Advanced 25 As per criteria  £5.25 0.0% £5.25 

Advanced 50 As per criteria  £3.50 0.0% £3.50 

Floodlights Additional charge per hour £5.00 4.0% £5.20 

 
 
The average increase within coaching is 3.19%. The highest increase is adult group lessons with 
3.4%/0.22p and the lowest is a private lesson by 3%/0.75p.  
 
Please note, lessons are provided in block lessons and the course lengthy may vary. These charges 
are based as per hour.  
 

Package Type 
Facilities/ 

Current  
  Proposed 

01/01/22 Activities Available   

Coaching 

Current charges 
per lesson % Increase  

2022 

£ £ 

Junior 30 minute  Group lesson  £4.32 3.01% £4.45 

Junior 45 minute  Group lesson  £5.28 3.22% £5.45 

Junior 60 minute  Group lesson  £6.00 3.33% £6.20 

Adult  Group lesson  £6.48 3.40% £6.70 

Private lesson private  £25.00 3.00% £25.75 

 
 
Freedom Leisure will continue to include an allocation of 15 hours per week for free tennis courts 
within the programme, subject to individuals meeting the advance 25/50 criteria. Free tennis courts 
require advanced booking through the club spark website, as with all tennis bookings.  
 
Active Communities Worcester 
 
The active communities holiday programme is provided free of charge at numerous venues 
throughout Worcester.  
 
The Active community team also attend a wide range of community events and the charges are 
negotiated with the event organiser, based on the following: 
 

 Duration of event 

Page 22



 Number of coaches 

 Number of activity’s provided  

 Equipment  

 Miscellaneous operating costs 

Page 23



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
 

Report to: Income Generation Sub-Committee, 10th November 2021 
 

Report of: Corporate Director – Finance and Resources 
 

 
Subject: FOOTBALL FACILITIES AT PERDISWELL  

 
1. Recommendation 
 

1.1 That the Sub-Committee approve funding of up to £10,000 from the Income 
Generation Fund to undertake revision of financial assessments.  

 
2. Background 

 
2.1 At its meeting of 10 July 2018 the Income Generation Sub-Committee considered a 

report into a number of potential sports developments including tennis provision, 

hockey and football, particularly in respect of five-a-side football pitches and pitches 
suitable for all-weather use. The Committee agreed to provide £25,000 to fund a 

feasibility study into the potential development of a Futsal facility and an All-Weather 
Pitch (AWP). 

2.2 A rage of assessments were undertaken and reports prepared for Committee in 

winter 2019/20 which were deferred due to focus on other developments. At the 
same time, the Football Foundation published its priorities for football development 

in Worcester and included an identified need for additional small-sided playing 
pitches and AWP provision. The Local Football Foundation Plan (LFFP) was presented 
to, and approved by, the Communities Committee in January 2020. 

2.3 The assessments included a proposed business case for each facility and new 
changing room facilities at Perdiswell Leisure Centre. The financial information which 

supported these proposals is now out of date and it is necessary to undertake 
revisions in the light of cost increases that have been experienced on other capital 
works as a result of the Covid-19 Pandemic and supply chain issues.  

2.4 In the meantime the existing five-a-side pitches adjacent to the Leisure Centre have 
been brought back into use. There is a further consideration, therefore, whether the 

conversion of the facilities to a Futsal stadium is the most cost-effective use of the 
site and the connected land. 

3. Alternative Options Considered 

 
Not to undertake the cost revisions 

3.1 The Council has the opportunity to develop football facilities within the objectives of 
the LFFP.  The decision whether to proceed with either of these proposals must be 
made on the basis of a sound business case. If the financial information is not 

revised there is a risk that the decision will be flawed and the provision may not be 
sustainable.  

Page 25 Agenda Item 6



 

4. Implications 
 

4.1 Financial and Budgetary Implications 
 

The Income Generation Fund has a projected balance of £220,039 as at 31 March 

2022, of which, £56,839 is uncommitted.  
  

4.2 Legal and Governance Implications 
The responsibility for leisure services lies within the remit of the Communities 
Committee. However, these facilities have the capacity to generate income for the 

Council and therefore fall to the Income Generation Committee for consideration.  
 

4.1 Risk Implications 
None directly arising from this report. 

 
4.2 Corporate/Policy Implications 

Provision of leisure facilities supports the Healthy and Active City Plan theme.  

 
4.3 Equality Implications 

None directly arising from this report. 
 
4.4 Human Resources Implications 

None directly arising from this report. 
 

4.5 Health and Safety Implications 
None directly arising from this report. 
 

4.6 Social, Economic and Environmental Implications 
 None directly arising from this report. 

 
 
 

Ward(s):   Claines/St Stephen 
Contact Officer: Shane Flynn 

 Shane.flynn@worcester.gov.uk 
Background Papers: Report to Communities Committee, 29 January 2020  

 

Page 26

mailto:Shane.flynn@worcester.gov.uk


  

 

 
 

Report to: Income Generation Sub-Committee, 10th November 2021 
 

Report of: Corporate Director, Finance and Resources 
 

 
Subject: QUARTER 2 PERFORMANCE REPORT FOR 2021/22 

 
1. Recommendation 
 

1.1 That the Income Generation Sub-Committee note the Council’s Quarter 2 
performance for 2021/22. 

 
2. Performance Reporting Framework 

 
2.1 A suite of Performance Scorecards have been developed providing a one page 

overview of priority projects, activities and Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) under 

the functions of each committee. 
 

2.2 The Scorecards are supported by a more detailed appendix providing a brief 
narrative update for projects and activities and a visual representation of PIs in the 
form of run graphs or charts as applicable. This provides context in terms of 

progression, trends and seasonal variations to support reporting using RAG 
assessments (Red, Amber or Green). 

 
2.3 The Scorecard has been refreshed for 2021/22 with projects completed in the last 

financial year replaced with new projects as previously agreed by this committee. 

 
2.4 The Quarter 2 performance report for the Income Generation Sub-Committee is 

attached as Appendix 1.   
 

 

 
Ward(s):   All 

Contact Officer:   Jo Payne, Corporate Policy and Strategy Officer,  
   01905 722407,  
   Email: Joanna.payne@worcester.gov.uk  

Background Papers: None 

Page 27 Agenda Item 7

mailto:Joanna.payne@worcester.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



 

P
age 29

A
genda Item

 7
A

ppendix 1



2 
 

Income Generation Committee 

Performance Report 
 
 

Income Generation Projects and Actions 2021/22 
 
 

Action Status 

 Cancelled 

 Overdue; Neglected 

 Unassigned; Check Progress 

 Not Started; In Progress; Assigned 

 Completed 
 

  

 

Commercial Strategy delivery 

The Commercial Strategy and Income Generation Strategies 
have been revised and were presented to the Committee at 

its meeting in July. These recognised the need to reset the 
agenda for the Committee and an informal meeting of 

Committee members met in September to explore options 
and consider new ideas. The outcomes of this exercise will 
form a new work programme to be agreed prior to the start 

of the next financial year.  
 

The FHSF is proceeding with acquiring properties that will 
result in a financial return sufficient to cover the acquisition 
costs where these are not grant funded. The Towns Fund 

business cases are now under development and assessment 
of any income flows arising from asset acquisitions under 

this programme will be reported in due course. 
 

There are no further properties currently under 
consideration for acquisition as commercial assets. A 
contractor has been appointed to undertake assessment of 

options for Council-led Housing delivery. 

Sponsor Mark Baldwin; 
Shane Flynn 

Due Date 31-Mar-2022 

Original Due 
Date 

31-Mar-2022 

Current Status  

Expected 
Outcome  

 

 

Income Strategy Delivery 

Delivery against the income strategy continues to be 
affected by the Covid disruption and wider economic impact. 

There is a risk, for example, that income from car parking 
will not return to pre-2020 levels due to employees working 
remotely rather than travelling into the city centre and 

parking all day and from increased internet shopping. The 
latter will have a knock-on effect on business rates too. 

However, they are some signs of improvement in the 
second quarter.  
 

Sponsor Shane Flynn 

Due Date 31-Mar-2022 

Original Due 
Date 

31-Mar-2021 

Current Status  

Expected 

Outcome   

Appendix 1 

Page 30



3 
 

Ongoing discussions with Freedom Leisure suggest that the 
full management fee will not be payable in 2021/22 unless 

income from subscriptions increases significantly. However, 
the council will be compensated for 75% of 95% of lost 

income by the Government for the first quarter of this year. 
 
Business rates income is becoming the focus of wider 

discussion as the High Street continues to face macro-
economic pressures. It has been confirmed that the 

business rates reset will not take place this year and the 
next revaluation is due in April 2024. The Council is likely, 
therefore, to be able to rely on business rates growth until 

that point.  
 

Sports facilities 

Work on the International Hockey Centre is substantially 
complete and the centre will be open shortly. The Trust has 

requested a permit to use the site in advance of formal 
completion which is being dealt with by the Legal team. The 
pitches themselves have been laid and the work is now 

concentrating on the facilities. Arrangements are being 
made to agree the previously approved loan to the Joint 

venture in the autumn as planned. 
 
It has been agreed with Freedom Leisure that they can 

refurbish the worn-out five-a-side pitches adjacent to 
Perdiswell Leisure Centre, subject to a capital clawback in 

the event that the Council seeks an alternative use. The 
previously proposed Futsal project still features in the LFFP 

but the financial profile needs to be fully reviewed in the 
light of post-Covid prices. 
 

A meeting was held in September with Tudor Grange school 
in relation to the All-Weather Pitch proposal in the LFFP.  A 

decision is required in respect of the Council's intentions 
which needs to be communicated to the School. The costs of 
this scheme also need to be reviewed and officers 

commissioned this work in October. 

Sponsor Shane Flynn 

Due Date 31-Dec-2021 

Original Due 
Date 

31-Mar-2019 

Current Status  

Expected 

Outcome  

 

 

Development of Housing Enabling Strategy 

A review of Council led Housing Delivery has been 
commissioned (contractor confirmed early October 2021) 

and this will consider a development company as one of the 
potential vehicles for delivery. The work is scheduled to 
commence on 1st November 2021 and will report to 

Communities committee and Income Generation Committee 
as appropriate during spring/early summer 2022. 

Sponsor Lloyd Griffiths 

Due Date 31-May-2022 

Original Due 
Date 

31-May-2022 

Current Status  

Expected 

Outcome  
 

 

Page 31



4 

Income Generation Key Performance Indicators 2021/22 
 
 

PI Status 

 Alert 

 Warning 

 OK 

 Unknown 

 Data Only 
 

 

Riverside - project related income 

 

Current Value £5,000 

Current Target £5,000 

RAG  

Aim to Maximise 

Income received from the renting of property and from trading licences along the riverside. 
 

Guildhall - project related income 

 

Current Value £12,000 

Current Target £37,000 

RAG  

Aim to Maximise 

Income from events and room hire has been reduced significantly during the pandemic. The 

situation is now improving with most of the Q2 income arising from bookings received in 
September. 

Page 32



5 

 

Trade Waste collection - project related income 

 

Current Value £372,000 

Current Target £413,000 

RAG  

Aim to Maximise 

Income has been lower during the pandemic with businesses requiring no or fewer 

collections. The situation is now improving and Q2 was close to the budget. The return of 
students to the University should provide a boost to the income levels. 
 

Garden Waste collection - project related income 

 

Current Value £391,000 

Current Target £362,000 

RAG  

Aim to Maximise 

Income continues to exceed the budget with the new accounts opened during the lockdown 
being retained. Year on year growth is 6%. 
 

Property Investment Fund - project related income 

 

Current Value £445,822 

Current Target £451,400 

RAG  

Aim to Maximise 

This is the gross rental income from the two large commercial properties in the city owned by 

the Council. Income has continued to be received during the pandemic and is slightly below 
budget following the settlement of the outstanding rent review. 

Page 33



6 

 

Car Parks - income - key revenue streams 

 

Current Value £1,287,000 

Current Target £1,661,000 

RAG  

Aim to Maximise 

Income from car parking has increased significantly since the lockdown period but is 

nevertheless still below the budget in Q2 by 17%. 
 

Bereavement - income - key revenue streams 

 

Current Value £729,000 

Current Target £789,000 

RAG  

Aim to Maximise 

Income has stabilised since the pandemic eased and is running close to the budget. 
 

Development Management - income - key revenue streams 

 

Current Value £308,000 

Current Target £355,000 

RAG  

Aim to Maximise 

Income is below budget but has improved during Q2 as the local economy recovers from the 

lockdown. 

Page 34



7 

 

Neighbourhood - income - key revenue streams 

 

Current Value £95,000 

Current Target £73,000 

RAG  

Aim to Maximise 

The budget was reduced to allow for the loss of a major contract. However work requests 

continue to be received, hence income is running above budget. 
 
  

Page 35



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 37 Agenda Item 10
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 Minutes
	Minutes

	5 Freedom Leisure - Proposed Fees & Charges For 2022
	Appendix 1 - Freedom Leisure Fees  Charges Proposal 2022

	6 Football Facilities at Perdiswell
	7 Quarter 2 Performance Report For 2021/22
	Appendix 1 - Q2 202122 IncomeGenerationPerformanceReport v0.4 CAP

	10 Minutes (Exempt Items)

